PLAN COMMISSION CLIY OF
of the City of Platteville PLATTEVILLE

—-——V— e —

AGENDA

MONDAY, NOVEMBER 3, 2025 - 6:00 P.M.
COUNCIL CHAMBERS IN CITY HALL—75 N. BONSON STREET, PLATTEVILLE WI

: I

ROLL CALL

APPROVE MINUTES - October 6, 2025

ZONING AMENDMENT — Expansion of R-LO Limited Occupancy Zoning Overlay District

Consider the proposed expansion of the limited occupancy overlay district designation.

HOUSING PLANNING DISCUSSION — Housing Development Tools and Regulations

Discussion regarding zoning requirements and potential zoning amendments, potential State law changes,
and funding resources to support housing. This discussion and additional discussions at future meetings are
intended to assist with the creation of the housing element of the comprehensive plan and to assist the City
with budgeting decisions related to housing.

ADJOURN

If you have concerns or comments related to an item on this agenda, but are unable to attend the meeting, please
send the comments to carrollj@platteville.org or call 608-348-9741 x 2235.




PLAN COMMISSION
Monday, October 6, 2025

The regular meeting of the Plan Commission of the City of Platteville was called to order by Plan
Commission Chair Bob Gates at 6:00 PM in the Common Council Chambers of the Municipal Building.

ROLL CALL:

Present: Bob Gates, Eileen Nickels, Robert Vosberg, Tim Durst, Ciara Miller, and Matt Niehaus (arrived
at 6:55 PM).

Absent: Barbara Daus and Rick Anderson

APPROVE MINUTES - August 4, 2025 )
Motion by Milier, second by Nickels, to approve the August 4, 20
5-0 on a roll call vote.

minutes as presented. Motion carried

HOUSING PLANNING DISCUSSION - Housing
City Manager Clinton Langreck launched the Hous

shared statistics on
rroll discussed the

meeting will be held on Tues

ADJOL
Motion

urst, second by adjourn at 7:34 p.m. Motion cartied 6-0 on a voice vote.

Respectfully submitted,

Colette Steffen, City Clerk




STAFF REPORT

CITY OF
CITY OF PLATTEVILLE PLATTEVILLE
Community Planning & Development Department e

Meeting Dates: Plan Commission ~ November 3, 2025
Common Council - November 10, 2025 (Information)
Common Council - November 25, 2025 (Action)

Re: Petition to expand R-LO overlay district

Case #: PC25-RZ03-11

Applicant; Petition signed by multiple property owners

Location: Camp Street, Colleen Court, Hollman Street, Eastman Street, Mason
Street, Main Street, Union Street, Williams Street,

L BACKGROUND

1. The zoning otdinance currently includes a Limited Occupancy Overlay District, which places
restrictions on the number of occupants that are permitted to live in a residential housing unit
located within that district. The ordinance also allows for the expansion of the designation to
additional properties through a petition process. A petition has now been submitted that has
been signed by the owners of 37 properties requesting the addition of the overlay district
designation on their properties.

IL PROJECT DESCRIPTION
2, The petition includes the following properties:

Parcel Number
271-01398-0000
271-01399-0000

Property Address
020 Camp Street
940  Camp Street

105G  Colleen Cowrt 271-00831-0000
1670 Colleen Court 271-03000-0000
1085 Colleen Court 271-03006-0000
1120  Colleen Court 271-03002-0000
1150  Colleen Court 271-03003-6000
1165 Colleen Court 271-03004-0000
860 Eastman Street 271-01397-0000
865 Eastman Street 271-01390-0000
905 Eastinan Street 271-01389-0000
950 Eastman Street 271-01394-0000

1080

Eastman Street

271-01341-0600



1175 Eastman Street 271-01360-0000
1190 Eastman Street 271-02951-0000
1210 Eastman Street 271-01933-0000
845 Hollman Street 271-01405-0000
905 Hollman Street 271-01403-0000
910 Hollman Street 271-00827-0000
935 Hollman Street 271-01402-0000
970 Hollman Street 271-02977-0000
1020 Hollman Street 271-02978-0000
1025 Hollman Street 271-01351-0000
1060 Hollman Street 271-02979-0000
1085 Hollman Street 271-01348-0000
1125 Hollman Street 271-01347-0000
1155 Hollman Street 271-01346-0000
1160 Hollman Street 271-02982-0000
1180 Hollman Street 271-02983-0000
1185 Hollman Street 271-01345-0000
1440 Main Street 271-03049-0010
1460 Main Street 271-03049-0000
1536 Main Street 271-03052-0000
950 Mason Street 271-01935-0000
1190 Union Street 271-02909-0000
880 Williams Street 271-01367-0000
925 Williams Street 271-01393-0000

3. Most of the properties in question are currently zoned R-1 Single Family Residential or R-2
One & Two-Family Residential. The petition requests that the properties also be rezoned to
include the R-LO Limited Occupancy Residential overlay zoning designation. The
properties at 1210 Eastman Street and 950 Mason Street are zoned R-3 Multi-Family
Residential and are not eligible for this overlay designation.

4. With the R-LO designation, the property can be used as an owner-occupied residence, and
as a rental property, but is limited to the number of unrelated individuals that can live there.
According to the requirements of the R-LO designation, the house can be occupied by any
number of individuals that compose a family (as defined by the code), but it would be
limited to a maximum of 2 individuals that are unrelated.

5. In the R-LO Limited Occupancy Residential Overlay District, the definition of “family” is set
forth below:

“Family” shall mean one of the following groups of individuals, but not more than one
group at a time:
(1) Any number of persons, all of whom are related to each other by-blood,
adoption, marriage, domestic partnership formed under Wis. Stats. 770, or legal

2



6.

III.

guardianship, along with up to one (1) roomer or boarder not so related, living
together in one dwelling unit as a single housekeeping entity; or

(2) Not more than two (2) persons who are not related by blood, adoption, or
marriage, living together in one dwelling unit as a single housekeeping entity; or
(3) Two (2) unrelated individuals and any children of either or both of them
living as a single-housekeeping unit.

For purposes of the definition of family, the term “related” shall mean a spouse, parent,
child, stepchild, child of a parent in a domestic partnership, grandparent, grandchild,
brother, sister, uncle, aunt, nephew, niece, great-grandparent, and great-grandchild, or a
child, grandparent, grandchild, brother, sister, uncle, aunt, nephew, niece, great-
grandparent, or great-grandchild of a person in a domestic partnership. The term
“related” does not include other, more distant relationships such as cousins.

The definition of family includes up to two (2) guests if the guests live and cook together
with the family in a single dwelling unit and do not pay rent or give other consideration
for the privilege of staying with the family. The definition of “guest” under this section
is defined as a person who stays with a family for a period of less than thirty days
within any rolling one-year period and does not utilize the dwelling as a legal address
for any purpose.

In the R-1 District, the definition of family is set forth below:

“Family” shall mean any one of the following groups of individuals, but not more than
one group at a time: (a) Any number of persons, all of whom are related to each other by
blood, adoption, marriage, legal guardianship, or domestic partnership formed under
Wis. Stats. 770, along with up to two (2) roomers or boarders not so related, living
together in one dwelling unit as a single housekeeping entity; (b) Not more than four (4)
persons who are not related by blood, adoption, or marriage, living together in one
dwelling unit as a single housekeeping entity; or (c) Two (2) unrelated individuals and
any children of either or both of them living as a single-housckeeping unit. For purposes
of the definition of family, the term “related” shall mean a spouse, parent, child,
stepchild, child of a parent in a domestic parinership, grandparent, grandchild, brother,
sister, uncle, aunt, nephew, niece, great-grandparent, and greatgrandchild, or a child,
grandparent, grandchild, brother, sister, uncle, aunt, nephew, niece, great-grandparent,
or great-grandchild of a person in a domestic partnership, The term “related” does not
include other, more distant relationships such as cousins. The definition of family
includes up to two (2) guests if the guests live and cook together with the family in a
single dwelling unit and do not pay rent or give other consideration for the privilege of
staying with the family. The definition of “guest” under this section is defined as a
person who stays with a family for a period of less than thirty days within any rolling
one-year period and does not utilize the dwelling as a legal address for any purpose.

STAFF ANALYSIS

7. The ordinance includes a process that allows individuals or neighborhoods to petition for

the creation of an RLO District in their neighborhood. To be considered, the petition must



Iv.

have the signatures of a minimum of 75% of the property owners within the proposed
district. If the petition has less than 100% of the signatures then the district requires a
favorable ¥ vote of the Council to be approved. The submitted petition does not include
any properties where the owner did not sign the petition, so a standard majority vote is all
that is required for approval,

STAFF RECOMMENDATION

Staff has some concerns with the spread of this overlay district beyond the original target
area. When the R-LO district was first created in 2011, the enrollment at UWDP was
increasing and the need for student housing was outpacing the ability of the university to
create housing. This resulted in owner-occupied homes being converted to rentals in the
vicinity of campus. The district was created to prevent, or at least reduce, the spread of
college rentals into residential areas near the university. However, the university
enrollment peaked in 2015 and has been steadily declining until this current year.
Additional rental housing has been constructed over the past ten years, so the demand for
student housing isn’t the same as when this district was created. Additionally, this current
request to expand the district is in an area much further from the university. This begs the
question, what is the purpose of expanding this district, The is something the City needs to
consider.

Overall, Staff is not against the current request to add the R-LO designation to the eligible
properties that requested it. As long as the request is to make the change for their own
properties and not forcing it onto other properties, Staff is not opposed. However, the
properties at 1210 Eastman Street and 950 Mason Street are not eligible to be included in the
ordinance.

ATTACHMENTS:

Map of Existing and Proposed Additions to Overlay District, Petition to Join District, Section

22.0514 R-LO Limited Occupancy Residential Overlay District



2N
IS P \—Madon—L
Existing Overlay District ///// , 1780] [ 1195 |20 TS as]
o 150 1165 | 116]
p ; i % 1165, : 1158 E 1166 | 112
roposed Overlay District & 1 41190 325 | 1120 [@74126 | 1ol
' =( )efi1o0| (Tyoss | 1080 | 1085 | 108
1P85}jogp| | 1065 | |1060 | [ 1055 | 105
Célloan G o | 1040 | [10as[g[ o [
! NI g & (7020 | [880]%@] & | ¢
]- noal - Wiliiami
! 085|970 [ |17 | 928 875 | 855 | 97
[ om
50 o 950 965 95(
! 585 | o5 | | 225 | o3
! ; 910 JE 905 916 | 88¢
5 Z ) 905 .
[l oy ps0 = ers |O08 ) f—red B
5 835 045| o, | 860 B30
- w0
m

1

apWestern'AvelgEnnn




STAFF REPORT CITY OF

CITY OF PLATTEVILLE PLATTEVILLE

Community Planning & Development Department e T

Plan Commission Meeting: November 3, 2025
Housing Discussion

The Plan Commission will continue discussions related to housing issues. The November
meeting will include discussions regarding past and potential zoning amendments, potential
state law amendments, funding sources, and other housing planning issues. There will be a
PowerPoint presentation and discussion. The attached documents are intended to support
this discussion.

Attachments:

1. Zoning Amendments approved in 2020

2. Zoning Amendments considered but not approved in 2022

3. Information on housing bills currently being considered by the State legislature.
4, Tax Increment Finance Summaries



April 14, 2020

ZONING AMENDMENT RECOMMENDATIONS
FROM 2019 HOUSING STUDY AND NEEDS ASSESSMENT

Current zoning districts are too limited and should be made more flexibie in order to avoid rezoning
property for development or going through a Planned Unit Development process.

Smaller lots, including zero-lot-line homes, could help developers to build more affordable first-time
homebuyer homes as well for those looking to downsize and should have appropriate zoning districts
which accommodate these home types.

Establishing smaller minimum lot sizes could be one method of decreasing the cost of building houses.
Having minimum lots sizes that are too large is one issue the City is potentially facing and could be
considered one reason housing is not being developed.

Another reason housing construction might be inhibited is that rezoning to a Planned Unit Development,
which allows for a mixed range of houses, can appear difficult.

The City may also have an issue with having homogenous residential zoning districts which need
additional flexibility.

The City may have an issue with having homogenous commercial zoning districts as well. By not allowing
for mixed-use development by-right, and without a rezoning, developers are less able to share costs and
profits across a range of development projects and generate economies of scale on construction and
development cost.

Allow for multi-family attached housing and apartments in commercial districts.

e Allow for muiti-family attached housing and apartments as a permitted use in the B-3 zoning

district.

s  Allow for multi-family attached housing and apartments as a conditional use in the B-3 zoning
district.

+  Allow for MF above neighborhood retail establishments as a permitted use in the B-1 zoning
district.

Create Mixed-Use zoning district.

» Create mixed-use zoning district requiring mix of residential and other uses, such as commercial,
office and recreation.

¢ (reate mixed-use zoning district incentivizing mix of residential and other uses, using shared
parking, expedited permitting, waiver of fees or other incentives.

Create mixed housing-type/smaller lot residential district.

e Create a residential zoning district which allows for multi-family attached residential
development as well as smaller SF lots, 5,000 to 8,000 sq. ft., as permitted uses.

* Allow for zero lot line construction for two-family and townhome construction. This will enable
greater opportunities for development not requiring condominium financing.

* Create conservation subdivision zoning district which allows for smaller SF lots, 5,000 to 8,000
sq. ft., along with open space set-asides.



April 14, 2020

POTENTIAL ZONING AMENDMENTS

22.03 SITE RESTRICTIONS

(B) ONE-PRINCIPAL STRUCTURES PER LOT. ExceptforPlanned UnitDevelopmentsasprovidedforin
Seetien-22:07In the R-1 and R-2 districts, al-principatstructuresshall-belocated-en-onelotand-only one

principal structure shall be located, erected, or moved onto a lot._In all other districts, multiple principal
structures are permitted on one lot as long as the building setbacks, parking requirements, lot coverage

requirements, fire department access, and other applicable code requirements are met for all structures
on the lot.

22.051 R-1 ONE FAMILY RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT.

(E) DIMENSIONAL REQUIREMENTS.

Lot Width: 70 80 feet
Lot Area: 8,000 10.000-square feet
Yards: Street: 25 feet
Side: 10 feet
Rear: 25 feet
Building height: 30 feet maximum

22,052 R-2 ONE AND TWO FAMILY RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT.

(B) SPECIFIED USES.
(1) One family dwellings.
(2) Public playgrounds.
(3) Foster Homes.
(4) Family Child Care Home.
(5) Two-family dwellings.
(6) Zero lot line two-family dwellings.

(E) DIMENSIONAL REQUIREMENTS.

Single Two-Family Dwellings and
Family Conditional Uses
Lot Width: 60 70 feet 90 100 feet
Lot Area: 6,000 8,000 10,000 42,000
Yard: Street: 25 feet 25 feet
Side: 10 feet 10 feet
Rear: 25 feet 25 feet
Building Height: 30 feet 30 feet

Zero Lot Line Dwellings: Each unit shall have a minimum lot area of 5,000 sq. ft. and a minimum
lot width of 35 feet. The internal setback between the units is 0 feet, the exterior building
minimum vard setbacks are the same as a standard two-family dwelling.




April 14, 2020

22.053 R-3 MULTI-FAMILY RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT.

(B) SPECIFIED USES.
(1) One family dwellings.
(2) Public playgrounds.

(3) Foster Homes.

(4) Family Child Care Home.

(5) Two family dwellings.

(6) Multi-family dwellings.

(7) Fraternities, sororities and rooming houses...
(8) Zero lot line dwellings.

(E) DIMENSIONAL REQUIREMENTS. Single family and two-family uses shall be subject to the
minimum dimensional requirements of the R-2 District.

Multi-Family and Conditional Uses:
Lot Width: 90 400 feet
Lot Area: Minimum 10,000 42,000 square feet with a minimum of 1,500 2,600-square feet per
efficiency apartment, 2,000 2,500-square feet per one-bedroom apartment and 2,500
3,000-square feet per two or more bedroom apartment.
Lot Coverage (Building + Parking): Maximum 80 70 %
Yards: Street: 25 feet
Sides: 10 feet each minimum; however, side lot lines that abut property in the R-1 and R-2
districts shall be increased by one foot for each foot of building height above 25 feet.
Rear: 25 feet
Building Height: 40 feet maximum

Zero Lot Line Dwellings: Each unit shall have a minimum lot area of 5,000 sq. ft. and a minimum
lot width of 35 feet. The internal sethack between the units is 0 feet, the exterior building
minimum vard setbacks are the same as a standard multi-family dwelling.

22.056 B-1 NEIGHBORHOOD BUSINESS DISTRICT.
(A) PURPOSE AND INTENT. The purpose and intent of the B-1 Neighborhood Business District is to
provide goods and services which are needed on a frequent basis in commercial areas that are
conveniently located to serve residential neighborhoods.
(B) SPECIFIED USES.

(1) Beauty and barber shops.

(2) Business and professional offices.

(3) Clinics.

(4) Drug stores.

(5) Florists.

(6) Convenience Stores, without automotive fuel sales

(7) Hobby shops.

(8) Self-service laundromats and dry- cleaning establishments.
(9) Residences attached to business establishments.




April 14, 2020

(10) Residences not attached to business establishments, subject to all provisions of the R-2

(11)
(12)

Residential District.

Day Care/Child Care centers

Similar uses: any use which is determined by the Zoning Administrator to be similar to
one of the above enumerated uses, and which conforms to the intent of the zoning
district.

22.059 B-3 HIGHWAY BUSINESS DISTRICT.

(A) PURPOSE AND INTENT. The purpose and intent of the B-3 Highway Business District is to
provide areas zoned for general commercial and service uses which are generally located along the
major streets and highways of the City and which are generally meant to serve a local, regional, and
traveling population.

(B)  SPECIFIED USES.

(1)
(2)
(3)
(4)
(5)
(6)
(7)
(8)
(9)
(10)
(11)
(12)
(13)
(14)
(15)
(16)
(17)
(18)
(19)
(20)
(21)
(22)

(23)
(24)
(25)
(26)
(27)
(28)
(29)

Beauty and barber shops.

Business and professional offices.

Clinics.

Pharmacies

Florists.

Grocery stores, supermarkets.

Hobby shops.

Self-service laundromats and dry- cleaning establishments.

Assembly halls.

Caterers.

Cleaning, pressing and dyeing establishments.

Financial institutions.

Furniture upholstery shops.

Hotels, apartment hotels and motels.

Liquor stores.

Media offices, studios, pressrooms, printing and/or publishing operations.
Mercantile businesses; retail stores.

Movie theaters.

Taverns, Night clubs, micro-breweries.

Pet shops.

Public and private parking lots.

Residences attached to business establishments; however, residential use of the ground
floor isprohibited limited to 25% of the total ground floor area (no limit on upper floor
area).

Health and recreation clubs; spas.

Feed and seed stores, not to include grinding or drying operations.

Farm machinery and equipment sales and service.

Trade and contractor’s offices and shops.

Utility offices and shops.

Legal places of entertainment, bowling alleys.

Restaurants. Restaurants with drive-through facilities are subject to the specific
standards in Section 22.06.




April 14, 2020

(30)  Financial Institutions with drive-through, subject to the specific standards in Section
22.06.

(31)  Vehicle sales and rental.

(32)  Vehicle service and repair.

(33)  Small motor sales and/or service.

(34)  Convenience store.

(35) Leasing of parking lots or parking spaces for uses not associated with the property.

(36)  Similar uses: any use which is determined by the Zoning Administrator to be similar to
one of the above enumerated uses, and which conforms to the intent of the zoning
district.

22.09 TRAFFIC, PARKING AND ACCESS
(E) LOCATION OF PARKING AREAS; USE OF YARDS

(4) For one- and two-family dwellings, yard setback areas as required by this Ordinance may be
used for parking, subject to the following requirements:

(a) No more than twenty five percent (25%) of the area of the street yard may be used for
parking; however, a driveway of up to twenty (20) feet wide is permitted for each
dwelling unit regardless of street yard area.

22.15 DEFINITIONS
LOT LINES — The lines bounding a lot as defined below. See Plate 3.

(a) Front Lot Line — In the case of an interior lot, the line separating such lot from the street right of
way. In the case of a corner lot, the front lot line shall be the lot frontage of least dimension. In
the case of a through lot, the lines separating such lot from the street on which the building is
addressed shall be the front lot line.

(b) Rear Lot Line — The lot line most opposite the front lot line. In the case of a lot which is pointed
at the rear, the rear lot line shall be an imaginary line parallel to the front lot line, not less than
ten feet long, lying farthest from the front line and wholly within the lot.

(c) Side Lot Line — Any lot line other than the front or rear lot line. A side lot line separating a lot
from another lot is an interior lot line. On a corner lot, the line abutting a street which is not the
front lot line is the corner side lot line.

SeePlate 3.

LOT, THROUGH — An interior lot having frontage on two parallel, approximately parallel diverging,
diverging, or converging streets. See Plate 3.

YARD — An open space on the same lot with a structure, unoccupied and unobstructed from the ground
upward except for vegetation and fences in good repair, as defined below. See Plate 3.

5



(a)

(b)

April 14, 2020

Rear Yard — A yard extending across the full width of the lot-{exceptonacornerlotthe
width-ofthe rearyard doesnetextendinto the street-yard), the depth of which shall be the

minimum horizontal distance between the rear lot line and a line parallel thereto through
the nearest point of the principal structure. This yard shall be opposite the street yard,-o+

the frontstreetyard-ena-cornertot._Corner lots and lots with three street frontages do not

have a rear yard.

Side Yard — A yard extending from the street yard to the rear yard of the lot, the width of
which shall be the minimum horizontal distance between the interior side lot line and a line
parallel thereto through the nearest point of the principal structure._For corner lots and lots
with three street frontages, any yard that is not a street yard is a side yard.

Street Yard — A yard extending across the full width of the lot, the depth of which shall be
the minimum horizontal distance between the existing or proposed street or highway line
and a line parallel thereto through the nearest point of the principal structure. Corner lots
shall have two street yards; the yard abutting the front lot line shall be the front street yard.



CITY OF

RESIDENTIAL DIMENSIONAL REQUIREMENTS PLATTEVILLE

22.051 R-1 ONE FAMILY RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT

Lot Width: 70 feet 2fest-
Lot Area: 8,000 sq ft 10,0005g-1
Yards: Street: 25 feet

Side: 10 feet

Rear: 25 feet

Bldg. Height: 30 feet max

22.052 R-2 ONE AND TWO FAMILY RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT

Single Family Two Family Dwellings & Conditional Uses
Lot Width: 60 feet Todzet 90 feet 1004eet
Lot Area: 6,000 sq ft 8;000-5¢-4t 10,000 sq ft 12,0065t
Yard: Street: 25 feet 25 feet
Side: 10 feet 10 feet
Rear: 25 feet 25 feet
Bldg. Height: 30 feet max 30 feet max

22.053 R-3 MULTI-FAMILY RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT

Single Family Two Family Multi-Family
Lot Width: 60 feet Fiteat 90 feet Aoofeat 90 feet Shefest
Lot Area: 6,000 sq ft 800051t 10,000 sq ft B e 10,000 sq ft 12.009
Yard: Street: 25 feet 25 feet 25 feet
Side: 10 feet 10 feet 10 feet
Rear: 25 feet 25 feet 25 feet
Bldg. Height: 30 feet max 30 feet max 40 feet max

Lot Coverage:  N/A N/A 80 % max.



Changes Considered in May 2022

ENABLING BETTER PLACES: A USER’S GUIDE TO WISCONSIN
NEIGHBORHOOD AFFORDABILITY
RECOMMENDED CODE CHANGES (existing code requirements shown in blue)

CODE ISSUE: Adjust lot and yard standards

e Lot widths and areas should be realigned to match historic patterns favoring narrower lots.

R-1:  Single-Family: Lot Width: 70 feet Lot Area: 8,000 square feet
R-2:  Single-Family: Lot Width: 60 feet Lot Area: 6,000 square feet
Two-Family: Lot Width: 90 feet Lot Area: 10,000 square feet
R-3: Single-Family: Lot Width: 60 feet Lot Area: 6,000 square feet
Two-Family: Lot Width: 90 feet Lot Area: 10,000 square feet
Multi-Family: Lot Width: 90 feet Lot Area: 10,000 square feet with a minimum of

1,500 square feet per efficiency apartment,
2,000 square feet per one-bedroom apartment
and 2,500 square feet per two or more bedroom
apartment.

e Setbacks should be reduced to historic distances to allow greater use of the existing lots.

Street: 25 feet

Side: 10 feet (For R-3 district side lot lines that abut property in the R-1 and R-2 districts shall
be increased by one foot for each foot of building height above 25 feet)

Rear: 25 feet

The required street yard may be decreased in any Residential or Business district to the average
of the existing street yards of abutting structures on each side, but in no case less than fifteen
(15) feet in any residential district.

e Increase permitted lot coverages to match historic patterns.

R-3: Lot Coverage (Building + Parking): Maximum 80 %

CODE ISSUE: Historic Multi-Family

e Allow multi-unit housing as permitted uses in single-family zoning districts which have historically
included two-family and multi-family. Ensure multi-unit housing is held to the height and frontage
dimensions of existing single household dwellings or historic multi-unit housing. The number of units
is determined by the size of the building, not by density calculations.

R-3 Lot Area: 10,000 square feet with a minimum of 1,500 square feet per efficiency apartment,
2,000 square feet per one-bedroom apartment and 2,500 square feet per two or more bedroom
apartment.



Changes Considered in May 2022

CODE ISSUE: Accessory Dwelling Units (ADUs)
e Accessory dwellings should be allowed by right for all single-family zoning districts.

In the R-1 and R-2 districts, only one principal structure shall be located, erected, or moved onto
a lot. In all other districts, multiple principal structures are permitted on one lot as long as the
building setbacks, parking requirements, lot coverage requirements, fire department access, and
other applicable code requirements are met for all structures on the lot.

e Additional parking spaces should not be required for an accessory dwelling.

Single-family homes — Two (2) spaces.
Two-family and Multi-family dwellings:
Efficiency units — One (1) space per unit.
One-bedroom units — One (1) space per unit.
Two or more bedroom units — 0.75 spaces per bedroom, per unit.

CODE ISSUE: Remove Unnecessary Regulations and Restrictions
e Permit residential uses within downtown and Main Street zoning districts.
B-2: Residences attached to business establishments are permitted; however, residential use of

the ground floor is prohibited.

CBT: Single-family and two-family are permitted. Multi-family is conditional use.

e Permit residential uses, including multi-family, in commercial districts.
B-1: Same as R-2 district (one and two-family permitted).
CBT: Single-family and two-family are permitted. Multi-family is conditional use.

B-2 and B-3 districts: Residences attached to business establishments are permitted; however,
residential use of the ground floor is prohibited.

e Manage residential density with building types not units per acre in each district. Consider using three
to five residential zones, depending on locations:
e Post-1950’s era: Single-family, Two-family, Townhouses, Three to Six-family, and Multi-family
districts.
e Pre-1950’s era: Single-family, two-family and townhouses, Three to Six-family, and multi-family
districts. These are best implemented with intensity levels of low intensity, medium intensity,
and high intensity. Permit neighborhood-scaled commercial uses within the medium and high

intensity residential districts.



Changes Considered in May 2022

CODE ISSUE: Adjust Parking Requirements
e Reduce or eliminate parking minimums.

Single-family homes — Two (2) spaces.
Two-family and Multi-family dwellings:
Efficiency units —One (1) space per unit.
One-hedroom units — One (1) space per unit.
Two or more bedroom units —0.75 spaces per bedroom, per unit.

e Allow shared parking to count toward parking minimums.

Joint Use. The Zoning Administrator may approve joint use of parking facilities for two or more
uses or activities only under the following conditions:

(a) The uses utilizing the parking facility must operate at different times of the day, so that
there is no conflict in the use of the parking area.

(b) The main entrance of any use which utilizes the parking facility may be no more than
300 feet from the nearest driveway of the parking facility.

(c) All parties to the joint use, including the owner(s) of the parking facility, must sign an
agreement which allows for the joint use and outlines the hours of operation of the
various uses of the facility, subject to review and approval by the Zoning Administrator.

(d) The Zoning Administrator and the City Engineer must find that the joint use will not
result in any increased congestion in the public streets and will not otherwise violate the
intent of this Section.

e Allow on-street parking and allow it to count toward parking minimums.

CODE ISSUE: Evaluate Processes

e Adopt a Traditional Neighborhood Development ordinance.

e Consider replacing existing PDDs with TND standards.

e Assess and streamline the subdivision process including standards that direct development outcomes
and a time limit on municipal response.

e Assure workforce housing applications will be prioritized and response time limited to 90 days, max.



Five bills to boost housing sail through Assembly
committee, while others meet opposition

| Adozen bills, some aimed at addressing the need for affordable
workforce housing according to their Republican authors, passed the
Assembly’s Housing and Real Estate Committee Thursday, with all

‘-. but three gaining bipartisan support.

. Several of the measures have already been put on the tentative
calendar for the Assembly floor session scheduled for Tuesday, Oct. 7.

AB 182, would modify Wisconsin’s low-income housing tax credit and require the Wisconsin
Housing and Economic Development Authority (WHEDA) to ensure that 35% of the tax
credits it allocates are for projects in rural areas of Wisconsin.

AB 449 would require local municipalities with zoning to permit accessory dwelling units on
the property of existing single family homes.

AB 451 would create residential tax incremental districts, to encourage residential
developments with the resulting increases in property tax collection used to fund
infrastructure investment. That measure passed the panel 12-2.

AB 454 would establish a workforce home loan fund through WHEDA to provide gap
financing for new construction or significant rehabilitation of a single family home for the
borrower.

AB 455 would establish a grant program at WHEDA for the owners of apartment buildings to
offset converting their properties to condominiums. In an unanimous vote, the committee
approved an amendment from state Rep. Lori Palmeri (D-Oshkosh) requiring grant recipients
to give current occupants in a building being converted an opportunity to purchase their
unit....

...More

Leo’s notes: A dozen housing bills advanced this week, signaling rare
bipartisan momenitum on Wisconsin’s workforce housing crisis. Proposals
range from expanding WHEDA tax credits in rural areas to authorizing ADUs



and creating workforce home loan funds. Advocates note these measures
show progress, but real impact will hinge on consistent implementation and
local zoning alignment. For further explanation of each bill introduced, please
click article link.

Ken Notes: Save and share this article. Please note housing is one of the only

issues in Wisconsin receiving bipartisan support on several fronts. Many of
these issues Leo and | have been advocating for some time now...

Share this article on your social outlets

lLike O




316 W. Washington Ave., Suite 600
LE AGUE Madison, WI 53703

Phone: 608-267-2380
OF WISCONSIN Fax: 608-267-0645
MUNICIPALITIES Email: league@lwm-info.org

Website: lwm-info.org

League Summary of Housing Bill Package
Prepared on September 29, 2025, Updated on October 13, 2025

On Tuesday, September 23", a group of Republican legislators led by Representative Rob Brooks (R-
Saukville) held a news conference in the State Capitol to unveil seven housing bills. These proposals
moved rapidly through the process, with a public hearing in the Assembly Committee on Housing and
Real Estate just one week later on Tuesday, September 30", The Assembly Committee voted on these
bills on Thursday, October 29, Many of these bills were voted on by the full Assembly on Tuesday,
October 7™ and are now scheduled for a public hearing in the Senate on Wednesday, October 15", Below
is a summary of each of these proposals, adopted amendments, and legislative actions on these bills.

Assembly Bill (AB) 449 / Senate Bill (SB) 473: Local Regulation of Accessory Dwelling Units
Rep. Goeben (R-Hobart) and Sen. Bradley (R-New Berlin)
Bill Overview:
e This bill allows each single-family residence in Wisconsin to have a permitted (by-right) use of
an accessory dwelling unit (ADU). In other words, local governments may not ban ADUs.

- An ADU is defined as a complete independent living facility for one or more persons that
has a separate entrance from the existing single-family dwelling. An ADU may be within,
attached to, or detached from a single-family dwelling,.

e Any local ordinance shall allow at least one ADU on each parcel zoned for residential use or
mixed use on which an existing single-family dwelling is located. A municipality may not require
a conditional use, variance, or special review or approval to create or host an ADU.

e While ADUs may not be banned, local ordinances may be created to regulate any of the following:

- Limit the size of an ADU to no larger than the square footage of the existing single-family
structure on the same parcel,

— Limit the height of an ADU to not greater than the maximum height allowed in the zoning
district, except if the ADU is a conversion of an existing legal nonconforming structure,

- Require that an ADU satisfy current setback and lot coverage requirements, and

— Prohibit an ADU established after the effective date of the legislation from being utilized
as a short-term rental.

e If the bill is passed and signed into law by the Governor, the new restrictions would take effect
on the first day of the seventh month after publication.

Amendment Overview:

o Assembly Amendment 1 (AA1) clarifies that a permitted use of an ADU may only be created by
converting an existing structure that is within, attached to, or detached from a single-family
dwelling. In other words, a by-right ADU may not be a new structure under this legislation.

Legislative Actions:
e The Assembly Committee on Housing and Real Estate recommended AA1 for adoption on an 8-6

vote and recommended AB 449 as amended for passage on a 13-1 vote.



- AB 449 was scheduled to be voted on by the full Assembly during a floor session on
Tuesday, October 7™ but no action was taken. It is now expected that AB 449 may be
taken up by the full Assembly during a floor session on Tuesday, October 14™,

e The Senate Committee on Insurance, Housing, Rural Issues and Forestry has scheduled a public
hearing on SB 473 on Wednesday, October 15",

AB 450 / SB 475: Delayed Implementation of the New Commercial Building Code
Rep. Penterman (R-Hustisford) and Sen. Hutton (R-Brookfield)

Bill Overview:

e On September 1%, the Wisconsin Department of Safety and Professional Services (DSPS)
published the revised Commercial Building Code (CBC) that incorporates 2021 International
Building Code (IBC) standards. This rule replaces the 2015 IBC standards as Wisconsin’s CBC.
While published, DSPS has delayed the implementation of these new standards to November 1,

e This bill further delays the effective date of the new CBC incorporating 2021 IBC standards until
April 1, 2026. Any plans for commercial buildings including multi-family residential that are
submitted to the state or a local government delegated to review commercial building plans by
April 1, 2026 would continue to utilize the 2015 IBC standards in Wisconsin’s former CBC.

Legislative Actions:
e AB 450 was approved by the full Assembly on a voice vote on Tuesday, October T,
— Prior to action on the floor, the Assembly Committee on Housing and Real Estate
recommended AB 450 for passage on a 9-5 vote.

e SB 475 was referred to the Senate Committee on Licensing, Regulatory Reform, State and
Federal Affairs.

AB 451 / SB 480: Workforce Housing Tax Incremental Districts
Rep. Armstrong (R-Rice Lake) and Sen. Feyen (R-Fond du Lac)

Bill Overview:

e Currently, options to utilize tax incremental financing (TIF) to promote housing are insufficient.
With prohibitions on TIF for newly-platted residential, a 35% cap on residential in mixed-use tax
incremental districts (TIDs), and a maximum of 12% of a municipality’s equalized value in TIDs,
TIF is a powerful tool to promote economic development but has limited utility for housing.

e This bill creates a new TIF structure for residential developments. Referred to as “Workforce
Housing TIDs,” these TIDs would not be subject to the 12% limit and instead would have a new
3% limit of the municipality’s equalized value for these developer-financed TIDs.

e To create a Workforce Housing TID, a municipality would adopt a resolution designating the
district and finding that it complies with statutory requirements on the eligible expenses and
development restrictions, both of which are detailed below. Similar to existing TIDs, a Joint
Review Board consisting of representatives from each property tax-charging jurisdiction in the
area of the proposed district must be convened and approve the TID’s creation.

e To qualify, a residential development must comply with the following characteristics:
- The project must consist entirely of owner-occupied single-family or duplex residences,
— The lot size must be 7,500 square feet or less for single-family residences or 15,000
square feet or less for duplex residences,
- Lot widths must be 70 feet or less and lot setbacks must be no greater than 10 feet, and



- Single-story residences must be no larger than 1,500 square feet and two-story residences
must be no larger than 2,000 square feet.
Developer-financed eligible project costs in the Workforce Housing TID must only include costs
related to the construction or improvement of infrastructure necessary for residential
developments within the district. These costs may include development-related stormwater costs.

A project plan may not be amended to increase the project costs of the TID within ten years of

the unextended termination date of the district unless the Joint Review Board approves the plan
amendments and cost increases by a unanimous vote. A Workforce Housing TID may not be a

donor district or receive increments from donor districts in the municipality.

Amendment Overview:

A A1 makes numerous largely technical changes to AB 451, including:

- Allowing towns with territory in a sewer service area to create Workforce Housing TIDs
if the area currently has or will have sewer service in the new residential development,

- Clarifying that Workforce Housing TIDs are not subject to the current law restrictions on
the use of TIF funding for newly-platted residential developments,

- Setting the maximum lifespan of a Workforce Housing TID to 20 years with the
possibility of an extension by the Joint Review Board of up to three years,

- Allowing duplex developments to have a lot width of up to 80 feet,

- Clarifying the steps a municipality must take if the Department of Revenue determines
that a Workforce Housing TID would exceed the 3% of equalized value threshold, and

- Delaying the implementation of Workforce Housing TIDs to October 1, 2026.

AA2 changes the first bullet above to instead require a town to operate their own sewerage
system or have a sanitary district within the town to qualify to create a Workforce Housing TID.
All other changes to AB 451 from AA1 that are listed above are included in AA2.

Legislative Actions:

AB 451 as amended by AA1 and AA2 was approved by the full Assembly on an 88-7 vote on

Tuesday, October 7.
- Prior to action on the floor, the Assembly Committee on Housing and Real Estate

recommended AB 451 as amended by AAT for passage on a 12-2 vote.
The Senate Committee on Insurance, Housing, Rural Issues and Forestry has scheduled a public
hearing on SB 473 on Wednesday, October 15™.

AB 452/ SB 479: Subdivision Plat Approvals and Requirements

Rep. Kreibich (R-New Richmond) and Sen. Feyen (R-Fond du Lac)
Bill Overview:

Chapter 236, Wis. Stats., governs approval for the platting of lands and recording of those plats.
This bill makes several changes to that chapter as detailed below.

Sections 1 and 8 - Current law governing the purpose and intent of this chapter look, in part, to
prevent the overcrowding of land and the undue concentration of population and to lessen
congestion on streets and highways. This bill strikes those purpose and intent statements, instead
adding statements to foster the development of a range of housing types and promote complete
streets that prioritize safety, comfort, and accessibility for a range of transportation options.
Section 2 - This bill creates a “pre-submission conceptual review” process wherein a subdivider
may request the opportunity to informally meet with a local government before they submit a
preliminary plat for approval. A local government would provide their conceptual review



regarding the proposed subdivision and opinions on whether it complies with local requirements
and conditions. These meetings are not binding on the local government or the subdivider.

o Sections 3 and 4 - Current law allows a subdivider to submit a preliminary plat prior to
submitting a final plat. The local government has 90 days to approve, approve conditionally, or
reject the preliminary plat and explain their conditions or reasons for rejection. This bill allows a
subdivider to submit preliminary plans and reports regarding sewer, water, road cross-sections,
grading, stormwater, soil testing, landscaping, and street lighting along with a preliminary plat.
The preliminary plat may not be rejected on the basis that the plans and reports are not final, but
the plat may be approved conditionally with the conditions described in writing.

o Section 5 - Local governments are currently allowed either to: 1) require a subdivider to install
any reasonably necessary public improvements prior to preliminary or final plat approval; or 2)
require the subdivider to provide security at the commencement of a project in an amount up to
120% of the total estimated cost. This bill removes the first option, thereby only allowing a
requirement for financial security of public improvements. Local governments would be
expressly prohibited from requiring that public improvements are installed or accepted as a
condition of submission, review, approval, or recording of a preliminary or final plat.

e Section 6 - Current law states that, upon substantial completion of public improvements, any
outstanding local building permits that are related to and dependent upon substantial completion
shall be released. This bill clarifies that the requirement applies to “each home site on the plat.”

o Section 7 - The bill requires that, subject to the register of deeds office accepting an approved
plat, a final plat that was approved is entitled to be recorded and the clerk of that local
government shall make a certificate to that effect within 10 days of a subdivider’s request.

o Sections 9 and 10 - The requirements of Sections 3, 4, and 5 would first apply to a plat submitted
on the effective date of the legislation. The effective date would be the first day of the seventh
month after publication should the bill pass the legislature and be signed into law.

Amendment Overview:
e AAl incorporates the following changes into the above sections:
- Section 5: Clarifies that nothing prohibits local governments from requiring as a condition
of plat approval that public improvements are installed within a reasonable timeframe.
—  Section 6: Clarifies that building permits must only be released if they meet the
requirements of building codes, zoning ordinances, and other municipal regulations.
- Section 7: Clarifies that a subdivider that requests a certificate on an approved plat must
submit the required affidavits of an approved plat under current law.

Legislative Actions:
e AB 452 as amended by AA 1 was approved by the full Assembly on a voice vote on Tuesday,

October 7",
- Prior to action on the floor, the Assembly Committee on Housing and Real Estate
recommended AB 451 as amended by AA1 for passage on a 13-1 vote.

e The Senate Committee on Insurance, Housing, Rural Issues and Forestry has scheduled a public
hearing on SB 479 on Wednesday, October 15",

AB 453 /SB 472: Comprehensive Plans, Rezoning Requests, and Affordable Housing TID Extensions
Rep. Armstrong (R-Rice Lake) and Sen. Jagler (R-Watertown)

Bill Overview:




This bill has four main components: 1) revising the comprehensive planning statutes to require
the land use element to identify densities of areas intended for future residential development; 2)
making those densities regulatory if a qualifying rezoning request is submitted for those
identified areas; 3) defining newly platted residential for the purposes of tax incremental
financing (TIF); and 4) increasing the affordable housing TIF extension to two-years.

1) Comprehensive Planning Changes

Sections 1, 2, 9, 12, and 18 - When comprehensive planning statutes were first effective in 2010,
local governments received grants for the completion of their first plan. As funding was
insufficient to fulfil all grant requests, the effective date of the comprehensive planning
requirements were delayed for local governments that applied for but did not receive a grant.
These sections delete obsolete references to this two-year delay from 2010 to 2012.

Section 3 - Given the requirement that certain land use ordinances are consistent with an adopted

comprehensive plan (often referred to as the consistency requirement), the term “consistent with”
was defined in statutes. This section deletes the definition of “consistent with” from statutes. This
requirement is later redefined in Section 10 of the legislation described below.

Sections 4 and 5 - The land-use element of a comprehensive plan already requires that certain
details are analyzed in the element and included in the corresponding land-use map. This includes
assumptions of net densities. This section adds a requirement that for 20 years, in five-year
increments, areas in which residential land use is projected must have minimum and maximum
net densities specified in residential units per acre for each area and increment. These
determinations of net density must exclude wetlands, floodplains, and government-owned land.

Sections 6 and 7 - Current law states that while certain land use ordinances must be consistent
with a comprehensive plan, the enactment of a comprehensive plan does not make the plan itself
a regulation. These sections specify that the new net density requirements for land identified for
future residential development in the land-use element (described in the bullet above) are
regulatory in nature, though the remainder of a plan is treated the same as current law.

Sections 8 and 10 - Amending the consistency requirement of current law, these sections specify
that an enacted or amended land use ordinance is consistent with the comprehensive plan if the
ordinance permits the use expressly identified in the land use map and corresponding land use
category descriptions. An ordinance is not inconsistent with a comprehensive plan solely because
it permits additional land uses beyond those identified in the map and category descriptions.

Section 11 - If a local government enacts or amends any land use ordinance or adds land by
annexation or consolidation that is intended for residential use, the local government must:

- Ensure the comprehensive plan includes the minimum and maximum densities of future

residential development in identified areas described in Sections 4 and 5, and

- Ensure those residential net density standards are incorporated into the ordinance.
If a person submits a request for the rezone of a parcel (next section) and the minimum and
maximum net densities are not included in the comprehensive plan, the local government shall
amend their comprehensive plan within 180 days to include the densities. The procedures in s.
66.1001 (4) for a comprehensive plan, including public notice and comment, do not apply to a
comprehensive plan update commenced under this process due to the compressed timeline.

2) Approval of Rezoning Requests
Sections 13 and 14 - In these sections, if a person submits a request for a zoning classification
change required to proceed with a residential housing development and all elements described
below are satisfied, the local government is required to grant the request within 60 days:

— The proposal is for an area identified in the comprehensive plan for residential land use,



- The proposal is for an area that is contiguous to existing development,

- Either the proposal falls within the minimum and maximum net density of residences
identified in the comprehensive plan for the current five-year increment or the
comprehensive plan does not include the densities required under Section 5 of the bill, and

- The housing supply in the local government does not meet existing housing demand or
forecasted demand within the next five years, as identified in the comprehensive plan.

If a person filing the request specifies their preference for a zoning classification in the local
government’s zoning ordinance and a request is granted, the land subject to that request shall be
reclassified to the person’s preference. If the person filing the request did not specify their
preference for a zoning classification but did specify their preference for requirements including
building setbacks, lot widths or frontage, lot sizes, and building sizes or bulks, those preferences
shall be granted along with the least restrictive requirements in the local zoning ordinance.

Local governments may reject requests that fail to identify the proposed minimum and maximum
net density of residences in the proposed development. A request may also be rejected if the local
government demonstrates that a request would result in a shortage in or overburdening of public
facilities in the local government or to address a significant threat to public health or safety.

Sections 15 and 16 - Under current law, a person aggrieved by a local government failing to
approve a permit for a residential housing development may seek relief from the courts. These
sections expand that relief to a local government failing to approve a rezoning request under the
bullet above and entitles the person to seek recovery of court costs and reasonable attorney fees.

Section 17 - In this section, if a local government issues a request for proposals (RFP) for a
residential development that is reasonably expected to receive water and sewer services on land
that is not environmentally contaminated and no person responds to the RFP, the process in
Section 14 does not apply in that local government for one year from the end of the RFP. A
response under this section may include a response in writing from a developer explaining the
person’s economic reasons for not submitting a proposal in response to the RFP,

Section 22 - The new requirements for granting rezoning requests in Section 14 would first apply
to a request made on the effective date of the bill (see below) if it were to become law.

3) Newly Platted Residential Definition

Section 19 - The legislature prohibits the use of TIF for newly platted residential development to
prevent mixed-use or other TIDs from extending into greenfield development. However, a lack of
clarity in the law has led to an interpretation that newly platted includes redevelopment sites
where blight was removed and the land was replatted for new development. This section clarifies
that newly platted residential development means the parcel has not previously been the site of
permanent structures other than structures used solely for agricultural purposes. The goal is to
codify the initial intent to allow redevelopment to promote additional housing options in TIDs.

4) Affordable Housing TIF Extension

Section 20 - Current law allows municipalities to extend the lifespan of a TID by one-year and
use the increments on housing. At least 75% of the funds generated must be used to benefit
affordable housing in the city, with the remaining funds used to improve the city’s housing stock.
This section increases the affordable housing TID extension to two years.

Section 21 - This section requires that all increments generated by an affordable housing TID
extension are expended to purchase services or goods from for-profit entities.

5) Effective Date of the Bill
Section 23 - If passed and signed into law, this legislation would take effect on January 1, 2028,



Amendment Overview:

°

AAT amends Section 14 to remove a requirement that the proposed area is contiguous to existing
development, instead stating that the area must be adjacent to or in close proximity to existing
development so the area may be reasonably served by existing infrastructure and public services.

AA2 removes Section 21 from the bill, allowing the two-year affordable housing TID extension
to be utilized in accordance with current law requirements without new requirements.

AA4 amends Section 14 to remove the ability of a rezoning requester to create new setback, lot
size and width, and building size requirements to fit their project. A person filing a qualifying
rezoning request may still choose their preferred applicable zoning classification but may not
create their own standards.

AAS specifies that the provisions related to the net density ranges in a comprehensive plan, new
consistency requirements for a comprehensive plan, and mandatory rezoning requests do not
apply to a town or county. Further, this amendment requires a person filing a rezoning request to
certify that the land is not subject to farmland preservation agreements or zoning or an
agricultural enterprise area designation. If it is, the land may not be rezoned under this process.

Legislative Actions:

AB 453 as amended by AA1, AA2, AA4, and AAS was approved by the full Assembly on a
55-39 vote on Tuesday, October 7.
- Prior to action on the floor, the Assembly Committee on Housing and Real Estate
recommended AB 451 as amended by AA1, AA2, and AA4 for passage on a 9-5 vote.

The Senate Committee on Insurance, Housing, Rural Issues and Forestry has scheduled a public
hearing on SB 472 on Wednesday, October 15",

AB 454 / SB 476: Workforce Home Loan Program

Reps. Rodriguez (R-Oak Creek), Snyder (R-Weston), Knodl (R-Germaniown), and Rivera-Wagner
(D-Green Bay) and Sens. James (R-Thorp) and Johnson (D-Milwaukee)

Bill Overview:

This bill creates a “Workforce Home Loan Program” at the Wisconsin Housing and Economic
Development Authority (WHEDA). These loans would provide gap financing that supplement a
conventional mortgage for the purchase of a new or remodeled single-family residence.

Residents would be eligible for a loan if they have not owned property in the past three years,
have an annual household income equal to or less than 100% of the county’s median income, and
certain other requirements on credit score, debt-to-income ratio, and financial reserves are met.

Loans may be issued for a period of 15 or 30 years, depending on the applicant’s income, with a
0% interest rate. These loans could be up to $60,000, with the cap adjusted annually for inflation.
The bill provides $10 million from the $525 million workforce housing fund established in the
2023-2025 State Budget to fund the four programs created by 2023 Acts 14, 15, 17, and 18.

Amendment Overview:

AA1 changes the amortization length of a loan for an applicant with an income between 80% and
100% of the area median income from 30 years to 15 years, matching the loan length in AB 454.
AA3 makes several technical changes to AB 454, including: 1) removing reference to substantial
rehabilitation, meaning only new build homes qualify for these loans; 2) prohibiting WHEDA
from charging any fee in connection with the issuance of a loan; 3) referencing a federal publication
for determination of the area median income; and 4) clarifying WHEDA underwriting guidelines.

7



Legislative Actions:

The Assembly Committee on Housing and Real Estate recommended AA1 for adoption on a 14-0
vote and AA3 for adoption on a 14-0 vote. The committee recommended AB 454 as amended for
passage on a 14-0 vote. It is not currently scheduled for action before the full Assembly.

The Senate Committee on Insurance, Housing, Rural Issues and Forestry has scheduled a public
hearing on SB 476 on Wednesday, October 15",

AB 455/ SB 481: Condominium Conversion Reimbursement Grant Program

Rep. Murphy (R-Greenville) and Sen. Feyen (R-Fond du Lac)
Bill Overview:

This bill creates the “Condominium Conversion Reimbursement Grant Program” at the
Wisconsin Housing and Economic Development Authority (WHEDA). This program will provide
up to $50,000 in reimbursement for costs to convert multifamily housing to condominiums.
Eligible reimbursement grant costs for the property owner include reasonable attorney fees, state
and local permitting fees, and any other cost incurred for the grant project.

The bill provides $10 million from the Restore Main Street Loan Program created last session.

Amendment Overview:

AA2 allows a qualifying project by a housing cooperative to qualify for the grant program.
AAZ3 requires the recipient of a grant to provide occupants of the multifamily housing unit being
converted into condominiums the opportunity to purchase the unit they currently occupy.

ASA1 incorporates the requirements AA3 and removes “any other cost incurred for the grant
project” from the list of eligible costs for grant recipients.

Legislative Actions:

AB 455 as amended by ASA1 was approved by the full Assembly on a voice vote on Tuesday,
October 7',
- Prior to action on the floor, the Assembly Committee on Housing and Real Estate
recommended AB 455 as amended by AA2 and AA3 for passage on a 12-2 vote.
The Senate Committee on Insurance, Housing, Rural Issues and Forestry has scheduled a public
hearing on SB 476 on Wednesday, October 15,



Planning Implementation Tools
Tax Increment Financing

November 2009

Figure I: TID #3 in the Village of
Howard is being used to develop a
Tax increment financing (TIF) is a tool used to spur the development or new mixed-use village center.
redevelopment of an area. When a tax incremental district (TID) is AR U Tl IE S EEE
created, all taxing jurisdictions—including the county, municipality,
school district, technical college, and special taxing districts—agree to
limit the amount of taxes they receive from the district based on property
values in place when the district was created. The municipality agrees to
pay for public improvements in the district in hopes of spurring
additional private investment, As property values rise, taxes resulting
from the incremental rise in value are used to repay the municipality.

" COMMON USES

Since Wisconsin’s TIF law was adopted in 1975, TIF use has expanded
dramatically. Originally designed to redevelop blighted urban areas and
to promote industrial development, TIF may now be used by cities and

villages, and to a lesser extent, towns and counties for a variety of B e
purposes. The tables below provide a list of eligible districts and costs |

NASANT LS WELCRED

by level of government.
Table 1: TIF Use by Local Government

Level of government Statute District type

City or village §66.1105 Blight, Rehabilitation/Conservation, Industrial, Mixed-use
Town §66.1105 Any of the above as part of an annexation agreement
Town §60.85 Agricultural, Forestry, Manufacturing, Tourism

City, village, town, county §66.1106 Environmental Remediation

Tab!e 2: TIF Project Costs

Eligible project costs Ineligible project costs

= (Capital costs of buildings, public improvements = (Costs of constructing or expanding administrative
and equipment to service the district buildings, police and fire buildings, libraries,

= Planning, engineering, architecture, legal, and community and recreational buildings, and schools
other professional services = Costs generally financed by user fees

= Financing and property acquisition costs = General government expenses unrelated to TIF

= Environmental investigation and remediation = Cash grants made to owners, lessees or developers

= Demolition, including removal of underground of land within a TIF district, unless a development
storage tanks, abandoned containers or asbestos agreement has been signed

= Redevelopment, including business relocation and
other improvements

- Eligible costs may vary by type of district, Please refer to the appropriate state statute for your project. ~&




'CREATION '

1.

ADMINISTRATION

Tax Incremental District. The municipality identifies or a
developer requests that an area be developed using TIF funds. Land
must be contiguous, unlikely to develop “but for” the use of TIF, and
qualify as one of the district types identified in Table 1.

Project Plan and District Boundaries. The plan commission
prepares a project plan identifying district boundaries, public
improvements, estimated project costs, financing and other details.
Public Hearing and Notice. The plan commission holds separate or
joint public hearings to review the project plan and district
boundaries. Advance notice is provided to affected property owners,
taxing jurisdictions, and the general public.

Local Government Approval. Following public review and a
recommendation from the plan commission, the governing body may
approve, deny or modify the project plan and district boundaries.
The governing body adopts a resolution creating the district.

Joint Review Board Approval. A joint review board, consisting of
one representative from the county, municipality, school district,
technical college and general public approves or denies the district.
Determination of Base Value. Once approved, the municipal clerk
forwards an application to the Department of Revenue to determine
the current or ‘base value’ of property located in the district. Until
the district closes, property taxes allocated to each taxing jurisdiction
are based on this value—all remaining taxes repay the municipality.

Project Costs. The municipality finances public improvements and
other eligible costs shown in Table 2 through its general fund, a
special TIF fund, or through the sale of notes or bonds. Some
municipalities are also working with developers to provide financing.
Private Investment. As the municipality and private investors make
improvements in the district (i.e. upgrading roads, adding sewer
service, rehabilitating old buildings, etc.), the district’s property
values increase. In some cases, staff may need to solicit or negotiate
with developers to provide specific public improvements or
favorable financing terms to make private investment more feasible.
Allocation of Tax Increment. Taxes on increased property values
above the base value—known as the ‘tax increment’—are captured
by the municipality to pay off its initial investment in the district.
Annual Report. Municipal officials are required to report annually
on the status of the district to the general public, local taxing
jurisdictions, and the Department of Revenue. Periodic accounting
audits are also required.

Amendment or Extension. Following the same process used to
create a district, a municipality may amend the project plan, add or
remove property from the district, or reallocate excess TIF funds to
another district. The life of some districts may be extended.

District Closure. After all project costs have been recovered, or the
maximum life of the district is reached, whichever occurs first, the
governing body adopts a resolution dissolving the district. District
life is specified in state statutes and ranges from 16-27 years
depending on the district type and date of creation. Upon closure,
unpaid project costs become the responsibility of the municipality.

TIF by the numbers...

= In 2008, 389 Wisconsin
municipalities (178 cities, 207
villages, and 4 towns) had 1,006
TIF districts, collecting $334.4
million in property taxes.

= The state’s ten largest cities
each had at least 5 districts.

® 104 municipalities (27%) had
districts totaling at least 12% of
municipal value, the current
statutory limit for TIF spending.

Twelve (3%) had districts
totaling more than 30%.

At 3.5% of gross property taxes,
TIF levies are approaching the
municipal portion of property
taxes for towns and villages.

Among 81 recently closed
districts, 75% of TIF
expenditures went to capital
improvements and borrowing.
Other expenditures are
displayed below.

H Capital Expenditures 43.2%

EBorrowing Costs 31.5%
@ Subsidies to Other TIDs  14.7%
BMiscellaneous 6.7%
B Grants to Developers 2.7%
b Administrative Costs 1.2%

The average life of closed
districts is 16.5 years.

Since the state’s TIF law was
adopted in 1975, Wisconsin
property owners have paid a
total of $3.7 billion in property
taxes towards TIF projects.

Excerpted from The Wisconsin

Taxpayer, May 2009, Vol 77, No 5




Report Card

Cost Money or staff resources required to implement the tool.

Upfront costs,
long-term gains

Public Accep’;a_nce

Mixed support

Political Ac;cep*mncie'

Widely used

Shared benefits
and risks

Administration

Highly technical

Local government

A TIF bond is riskier than a general obligation bond, resulting in higher interest
rates and more total interest paid. There are also higher issuance costs including
feasibility studies, outside financial audits, and extra legal fees. The return on
investment is not immediate, and there is no guarantee that a municipality will
recoup its entire investment. Between 2007 and 2008, 24% of Wisconsin TIF
districts lost property value. Conservative fiscal estimates and an understanding
of long-term market trends can protect against these situations.

The public's posi'rive;r' negative percep‘rioniof the tool.

The public hearing required by the TIF law is often the only opportunity for the
public to voice their support or concern over a proposed district. While many
members of the public are willing to support the greater goal of improving a
designated area, others are leery of forgone taxes, the inability to recoup the
municipality’s investment, and concerns over “greenfield” development, “big
box” development, displaced businesses, and other negative externalities.

Local officials’ wiilingnes‘?s?o implement the tool.

In 2008, nearly 400 Wisconsin municipalities administered TIF districts. Given
budget constraints and public concern over new taxes, TIF is one tool that local
officials can use to find revenue sources without significantly raising taxes.
Though TIF is widely used, there are political risks. If a TIF project does not
perform as expected, local officials may be blamed. Taxing jurisdictions that do
not see immediate benefit such as schools may be hesitant to support TIF.

Fairness to stakeholders regarding who incurs costs and consequences.

TIF allows for sharing of costs among all beneficiaries of public improvements.
In the absence of TIF, municipalities and developers are responsible for
financing public improvements. With TIF, the investment made by a
municipality or developer is repaid, and the community-at-large benefits from an
expanded tax base. However, there are also opportunity costs for all parties
involved. There is no guarantee that the initial investment in the district will be
repaid. Taxing jurisdictions forego increased taxes during the life of district. As
property values rise, district property owners pay an increasing tax bill. The
general public may also pay increasing taxes if additional services are provided.

Level of complexity to manage, maintain, enforce, and monitor the tool.

Many Wisconsin municipalities lack professional economic development and
planning staff necessary to properly administer TIF. A great deal of work is
required upfront to prepare the required planning documents and financial
analyses. During the life of the district, regular accounting audits, assessment
data and certification paperwork must be submitted to the Department of
Revenue. If a municipality does not have adequate staff to perform these tasks,
it may need to contract with a professional planning or accounting firm.

The geographic scale at which the tool is best implemented.

TIF has been used successfully by municipalities of all sizes. Cities and
villages have greatest latitude in using TIF. County and town use is limited.




 WISCONSIN EXAMPLES

Figure 2: TIF use by Wisconsin
municipalities and value

growth summarized

Not adjusted for inflation. Equalized value
b}’ CO!H!!}’. 185% is the state’s assessment of taxable property
_ ® value. Calculations include only those TIDs
i JEnncs 95 and parts of TIDs that were active, and whose
oo am ~ 35 base value did not change, during the entire
’ 3 period. (A change in a TID's base value can
I < indicate a change in the TID's boundaries.)
| pe— =
Eamnelt ] Samyds 250
, 7{\1 bA ‘7:;“%-,;-1. &
7~ (
fars =
i! R "h : JL - =
L "\:r; 5 .-:. | EA‘_"\;}‘" A ;Il.'k
,}' voay *
[“ P L % S =
R I L R [
= 1772
';u*.« o .\ll ur a
Lt . -
% <+ ¥ . '? *
& I
3 } € il
5 _B

“2

Y

Location and \&

Number of TIDs

Cities and villages with
@ anactive TID between
2000 and 2005.

All other citics and ll‘
& villages.

Number of active TIDs
or parts of TIDs ina
1os7county. / Number of
TIDs or parts of TIDs
included in calculations.

q (L-r resee

TID Growth by County
(Percent increase in the equalized value of TIDs and parts
of TIDs located in a county.)

- .
- ]

T l,

Developing a TIF Policy

The City of Madison’s TIF
policy provides a model for how
a community can set standards
for TIF-funded development that
goes above and beyond state
requirements. The city
encourages TIF districts that
create living wage jobs, provide
affordable housing, promote
historic revitalization, encourage
adaptive reuse, and promote
infill development, among other
goals. The policy document is
available online at:

www.cityofmadison.com/
planning/tidmaps/tifpolicy.pdf

The City of Muskego has also
adopted TIF guidelines which
are available online at:

http://www.ci.muskego.wi.us/pla
nning/CurrentPlanning/Documen

ts/tabid/907/Default.aspx

FOR MORE 1

NFORMATION

Wisconsin Department of Revenue. Tax Incremental Financing Information. www.dor.state.wi.us/slf/tif.html
Contains links to state statutes, an updated TIF Manual, and related reports and forms.

Moskal, Joe. 2005. Tax Incremental Finance Law of Wisconsin for Cities and Villages. Center for Community
and Economic Development. www.uwex.eduw/ces/CCED/economies/Tif forWeb.pdf

Mayrl, Matthew. 2006. Efficient and Strategic TIF Use: A Guide for Wisconsin Municipalities. Center on
Wisconsin Strategy. www.cows.org/pdf/rp_tif.pdf

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS
Document prepared by Rebecca Roberts, 2009. The author gratefully acknowledges the thoughtful review and
contributions of Linda Stoll, Center for Land Use Education; Kurt Muchow, Vierbicher Associates, Inc.;
Russell Kashian, Department of Economics, UW-Whitewater; and Doug Venable, Economic Development
Director (Retired), City of Janesville.

Figure 1 map from the Village of Howard www.villageofhoward.com/gis-maps.cfm. Figure 2 modified from
the Wisconsin Legislative Reference Bureau www.legis.state.wi.us/LRB/pubs/waag/WAAG-06-2.pdf.

Center :
*=Land Use Education

Extension




R o o

B MAVO W R0 JOIVN SuaTHa

j00] Juswdojanaq 21WoU0IT [NBMO v
Buioueul4 [BlUSWAIIU] XeL

e

ie)

ROWVDOSSY SEOLVI Nish

“358( XB) AU} 0} 8N|BA MBU JO UOI||Iq £ Auesu
Buippe ‘UISuodSIM Ul paleUILLS) UARQ arRyY SIL /i ‘000T 20uIS

UIWAIOUI Ul UOIIW G8YS
pauIqLI0d B paleald Jeak Jey) PaleuIuL) SQIL TE au -
ale $T0Z 40} SIAGLUNU 3 *SIWASY| 113y} Suunp anjea |eluswalou]
Ul UOI[IW Gip$ Bunessuss Jaye paleuILLIa) A1aM SAIL O ‘STOZ Ul

"GTOZ Ul pue $T0Z Ul anjea aseq s,qlL 3y Jo Juaiad 0B

Ue ss9] 18 panjen ale Yalym ‘sqiL IUsWaldap a1am GTOZ Ul SQILI0
a0iad g AjuQ "passansIp Aja1onas alem Juaalad T UBL) SS9| pue
PassaAsIp aiam Juadlad G°G AU ‘GTOZ Ul SAILSZT'T Y 0 "SIS00
108004d a15Y Jo fed 0] JuaLUBIIUl JUBIOIYNS aney SQIL 0 Auolew ay)

uadsad gtz Ajuo g anjea ul
paseaioul ajoym e se anjea pazienba a1e)s ‘uosuedwod uj uaalad
29 Aq pasealoul SQLL 2AI9R [ JO anjeA pazijenba [e10) aUY ‘ST 0T
1SN3NY 01 $10Z ISNSNY WOl 'Sq|L Ul S1el 13ISe) B 18 SINJJ0 LIMOID)

"IM0IS Q1L Y3 JO asnedaq Sulinaao sease SuloquSiau ul

AN|eA U] SSBALOUI 104 JUNOIIL J0U SIOP PUe S{|L VLM Pajelauss
aseq xe} e sjuasaldal aindiy syl "uonead sy aouIs 1eak Jad aseq
Xel 3} 0} U0I|jiw Z°T$ PAPPe GTOZ Ul AR (] seane ay)

'sieaf £6°TT Sulag ae q|L a8esane ayl yum ‘qglLsed uolw

¥'1$ 40 UolIg 9T Jan0 Jo ‘anjen Auadoud ur YIMOIB SI yaiym
‘JUIWIBIOUI PAUIGWIOD B paleiausd aney sy asau} ‘uondaoul auIg
*UISUOISIM Ul SQIL A0 ZT'T 19m 2I3LY 'GTOZ ISnBny Jo sy

$S929NS 4|1 UISUOISIM\

‘(1L AU} JUISE INII0 ISIMIALIO JOU PINOM JeL} YIMmoIS aseq Xe}
pue sqol ‘quawdojarap ajeaud ajowoad [jim Juawysaaul angnd
ey} S1 411 pulyaq sjeuones ay) ‘syuawarosdu) ayy Jo 3503 Yy}
fedau 03 anjea fuadosd paseasoul s,qL 2y} U0 Pa3aa|[0d Saxe}

aamny ayy 3usn “(QLL) JOMISIP [BJUBWRIIUI XE) B Pajjed ‘eale
pajeusIsap e UM $3509 3]qIS19 Jayjo pue sjuawwaicidw
a1qnd 1o} fed o3 f1jediounw e smojje ssadold 41) aYI ‘SZ6T
2ouls A||nyssaoans 411 Suisn uaaq aAey sayjedidiunyy "uoneald
qol pue juawdojaaap J1WoU0d Ands 03 aAeYy SIFEY|IA pue sanio
UISUOISI [003 SAI}IDY JSow Ay} S1 4|1 Juawdojaaap pue
aimonJjseljul Sulpuny piemo) pasn aq 0} ANUIAI X} SA)eIaUST
Jeyy Suroueuy Jo poyaw e si (4]1) Suroueuy [ejuawaioul xey

¢dlL st leym



SL0Z ELOZ  LLOZ ©00C [00Z SO00C EOOC  LOOZ

+10¢ TL0c OLO0Z B00Z 8008 +0OC <002 0002
0 95'e 962'025'628 | 9€2'882'8$ Jajemayuym
£2'9 0S5'905°168$ | LLE'0V0'EVLS uosipey
000'000'00% — T
= 69' 009'LY8'0SS | 299'ELL'EL$ alleg ung ea
— e 006'0L8'C0LS |  879'LLL'1ES allmsauer EMUO ODOZ, WOl) pa a 0 3JI| QL aFesane 3
m 152 00E'89r'901LS | 6SL'E2r'Trs 07 np puoy il pa i L B !
owro0enz = Y 000889'7YS | 91L9v8'6% oogeseg : B o QLSS 10 - S1500 198
g 292 059'8.5'v88 | 9Lg'ovz'ess|  umoewssy g} asn 0} 9|qe ani(ed 0 pied 9 02 J98l0id @
000'000'009' ojjey 1S09-Juawalau] JU3WaIIu] anjep S1s09 Ayediaungpy B UDOS SE S| 850]2 0) paje ale sanled
0002 39Uls SQIL pajeuuna) 4
leap Aq aseg Xeg] 0] pappy juswalau] 9|qissod se guo| se uado sq|L daay o aljljed 0
@ L @ e oW 200 % B
0™ Ty T o g™ i g v o0riL09izs| 6LrSSO'LLS BysaNEN, R R
62 002522 175 | £8LehL LIS Sied Jang By o ol
660 ) 006'2€6'SEES | £20°L05'18S esofemmER) O el Baaailia e s S5
80t w 91g 005'9.L'2618 | 2vE'v6E’16S NESNe 3SIMIALI0 18 anul areaud 3 0 B
Wi g 02'¢ 006'09v'9LLS | £16'258'9ES Uiyl el T U 03 P9
8L'g 00£'s6£'68$ | 929'LL2'928 al[e|] ne3 ot e .
%'t oney 1S02-JuaWaIIu] JU3WRIIU] anjep 5509 fyjediouny
Yol enjep paz|jenb3 ||y pue ajey yimosn aiL PAyBaL) ongeq sy poseding) $1509 19jold QL0 SeduEg ouvy d i1 Juifed pe
07 S2 aU] JO aWos 1e =Rl D 0 3S]3 3uo
glel xe] 9 g ed Q 0 aoid
- 3 | d J0 ea.( Xel B 0
! QlLIno
— e = eed 9 10U p|nom 1e anusaal Xel p = 0 ausq 0] 3
m i & 9yl ale 00 p 00 3yl o auado sI aseq
. a3 0 pied aie 0 0 d|L e u3 0.d pap
- g psjelauagd 0J3 3U3 FuIXe) WoJlj Sawod gL auyl pie
1] R 20d 1e auo 0 3yl anje q 0 3
fua -INERETRG [T eq 0 S3NUAA3 0 3Jeys piep
: ) A13931 0} 3 3IluNoa p 00 BA 3SBQ S,Q
093(Q pue pa dldf) EdlE e 200Jd 3
e pajeugisap 3 B U3 ple a ase gno
dJ di\d e 230 0] 9 0 d]e =10 0 Jl0 9
d ( pa d 3 ou a.e 00
) d d e 03J PUB |00 1



